Meeting Minutes for the Delegation – January 26, 2021 at 6:30 p.m.

Rep. Sylvia reconvened the Belknap County Delegation meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. on the above date at 34 County Drive, Laconia, NH.

In attendance: Rep. Bean, Rep. Comtois, Rep. Harvey-Bolia, Rep. Hough, Rep. Howard, Rep. Johnson, Rep. Lang, Rep. Mackie, Rep. O'Hara, Rep. Ploszaj, Rep. Silber, Rep. Sylvia, Rep. Terry, Rep. Trottier,

Via Zoom: Rep. Aldrich, Rep. Bordes, Rep. Littlefield, Rep Varney

Pledge: Rep Howard

M/Rep Lang S/Rep Johnson – to approve the minutes of Dec. 14, 2020 as amended – motion passes 16 with 2 abstentions

Adjust minutes to memorialize agreement with Gunstock regarding timber harvest and use of revenue

M/Rep. Silber S/Rep Howard - we vote to require that the Gunstock Area Ski Area turn over 1.75% of yearly gross operating revenue to the treasurer of Belknap County – unanimous

Rep. Howard moved the Executive Committee Budget Report

Belknap County 2021 budget, being the sum of each individual line, for purposes considered in detail, totaling the sum of \$30,256,185. Revenues as budgeted totaling \$14,110,876, with the use of \$3,000,000 from undesignated fund balance. The amount of \$13,145,309 to be raised from taxation

M/Rep Lang S/Rep Trottier – to amend County Admin auditing services to Commissioners recommended number of \$20,490 – motion fails 6 to 12

IT Department

SHERIFF

M/Rep Bordes S/Rep Trottier (part time deputy with Sherriff dept) – add \$2,963 back to line 014211-53420 – motion fails 4 to 14

M/Rep. Mackie S/Rep. Lang – to put into Exec Committee budget, all items requested by Commissioners handout as a total of \$444,824 – motion fails 4 to 14

M/Rep. O'Hara S/Rep. Bordes – to divide the question and vote on each line proposed by County Commissioner letter– motion fails 7 to 11

M/Rep. O'Hara S/Rep. Harvey-Bolia – motion to open up remaining time to Department Heads – motion passes 16 to 2

M/Rep. Howard – to accept Executive Committee's budget as presented – motion passes 11 to 7 – note: the motion by the Executive Committee Chair requires no second

M/Rep. Howard — moved the Executive Committee transfer recommendation authority be limited to \$1,000 between departments, any transfers summing more than \$1,000 between departments shall require authorization of the executive committee. Department means all lines within unique identifiers 014110 through 025194. — motion passes 15 to 3

Courthouse Lease

M/Rep. Johnson S/Rep. O'Hara – to accept lease agreement by Court House (Exhibit A) – motion passes 14 to 4

M/Rep Terry S/Rep Comtois motion to adjourn 9:25 p.m.

ATTENDANCE			
	ATTENDING	PLACE	ALONE
Howard		County	
Aldrich		Home	yes
Bean		County	
Bordes		Home	yes
Harvey-Bolia		County	
Hough		County	
Johnson		County	
Lang		County	
Littlefield		Home	yes
Mackie		County	
O'Hara		County	
Ploszaj		County	
Silber		County	
Terry		County	
Trottier		County	
Varney		Home	yes
Comtois		County	
Sylvia		County	

Motion	Rep. Lang		
Second	Rep. Johson		
	to approve minutes	as	amended
	YES	NO	Abstain
Rep.Howard	1	.,,	7105tam
Rep. Aldrich	1		
Rep. Bean	1		
Rep. Bordes	1		
Rep. Harvey-Bolia	1		
Rep. Hough	1		
Rep. Johnson	1		
Rep. Lang	1		
Rep. Littlefield	1		
Rep. Mackie	1		
Rep. O'Hara	1		
Rep. Ploszaj			1
Rep. Silber	1		
Rep. Terry	1		
Rep. Trottier			1
Rep. Varney	1		
Rep. Comtois	1		
Rep. Sylvia	1		
TOTALS	16	0	2

Motion	Rep. Silber		
Second	Rep. Howard		
we vote to require that	the Gunstock Area	Ski Area	turn over
1.75% of yearly gross op	erating revenue to 1	he treasu	rer of Belknap Count
	YES	NO	
Rep.Howard	1 1	NO	
Rep. Aldrich	1		
Rep. Bean	1		
Rep. Bordes	1		
Rep. Harvey-Bolia	1		
Rep. Hough	1		
Rep. Johnson	1		
Rep. Lang	1		
Rep. Littlefield	1		
Rep. Mackie	1		
Rep. O'Hara	1		
Rep. Ploszaj	1		
Rep. Silber	1		
Rep. Terry	1		
Rep. Trottier	1		
Rep. Varney	1		
Rep. Comtois	1		
Rep. Sylvia	1		
TOTALS	18	0	

Motion	Rep. Lang		
Second	Rep. Trottier		
to adjust County Admin	auditing services t	o Cor	nmissioners recommended number of \$20,490
	YES	NO	
Rep.Howard		1	
Rep. Aldrich		1	
Rep. Bean		1	
Rep. Bordes	1		
Rep. Harvey-Bolia		1	
Rep. Hough		1	
Rep. Johnson		1	
Rep. Lang	1		
Rep. Littlefield		1	
Rep. Mackie	1		
Rep. O'Hara	1		
Rep. Ploszaj		1	
Rep. Silber		1	
Rep. Terry		1	
Rep. Trottier	1		
Rep. Varney		1	
Rep. Comtois	1		
Rep. Sylvia		1	
TOTALS	6	12	

Motion	Rep.Bordes		
Second	Rep. Trottier		
part-time deputy v	with the Sherri	ff's c	lepartment
add \$2,963 back to line	014211-53905		
	YES	NO	
Rep.Howard		1	
Rep. Aldrich		1	
Rep. Bean		1	
Rep. Bordes	1		
Rep. Harvey-Bolia		1	
Rep. Hough		1	
Rep. Johnson		1	
Rep. Lang	1		
Rep. Littlefield		1	
Rep. Mackie	1		
Rep. O'Hara		1	
Rep. Ploszaj		1	
Rep. Silber		1	
Rep. Terry		1	
Rep. Trottier	1		
Rep. Varney		1	
Rep. Comtois		1	
Rep. Sylvia		1	
TOTALS	4	14	

Motion	Rep. Mackie			
Second	Rep. Lang			
to put into Exec Com	mittee budget,	all it	tems requ	ested by
Commmissioners han	dout as a tota	of \$	444,824	
	YES	NO	Abstain	
Rep.Howard		1		
Rep. Aldrich		1		
Rep. Bean		1		
Rep. Bordes	1			
Rep. Harvey-Bolia		1		
Rep. Hough		1		
Rep. Johnson		1		
Rep. Lang	1			
Rep. Littlefield		1		
Rep. Mackie	1			
Rep. O'Hara		1		
Rep. Ploszaj		1		
Rep. Silber		1		
Rep. Terry		1		
Rep. Trottier	1			
Rep. Varney		1		
Rep. Comtois		1		
Rep. Sylvia		1		
TOTALS	4	14		

Motion	Rep. O'Hara	
Second	Rep. Bordes	
to divide the questio	n and vote on	each line
proposed by Count	y Commission	er lette
	YES	NO
Rep.Howard		1
Rep. Aldrich		1
Rep. Bean		1
Rep. Bordes	1	
Rep. Harvey-Bolia	1	
Rep. Hough		1
Rep. Johnson		1
Rep. Lang	1	
Rep. Littlefield		1
Rep. Mackie	1	
Rep. O'Hara	1	
Rep. Ploszaj		1
Rep. Silber		1
Rep. Terry		1
Rep. Trottier	1	
Rep. Varney		1
Rep. Comtois	1	
Rep. Sylvia		1
TOTALS	7	11

Rep. O'Hara	
Rep. Harvey-Bolia	
emaining time to Dep	artment Heads
YES	NO
1	
	1
1	
1	
1	
1	
1	
1	
1	
1	
1	
1	
	1
1	
1	
1	
1	
1	
	Rep. Harvey-Bolia emaining time to Dep YES 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Motion	Rep. Howard	
Second		
	YES	NO
Rep.Howard	1	
Rep. Aldrich	1	
Rep. Bean	1	
Rep. Bordes		1
Rep. Harvey-Bolia		1
Rep. Hough	1	
Rep. Johnson	1	
Rep. Lang		1
Rep. Littlefield	1	
Rep. Mackie		1
Rep. O'Hara		1
Rep. Ploszaj	1	
Rep. Silber	1	
Rep. Terry	1	
Rep. Trottier		1
Rep. Varney		1
Rep. Comtois	1	
Rep. Sylvia	1	
TOTALS	11	7

Motion	Rep. Howard			
Second	recommended by E	xec. Co	mmittee	
motion to move transfe	er authority be limited to \$	1,000 be	tween departments,	
any transfers summing	more than \$1,000 between	n departn	nents shall require	
authorization of the exe	ecutive committee. Depar	tment me	eans all lines within uniqu	e identifiers 014110 through 025194
	YES	NO		
Rep.Howard	1			
Rep. Aldrich	1			
Rep. Bean	1			
Rep. Bordes	1			
Rep. Harvey-Bolia	1			
Rep. Hough	1			
Rep. Johnson	1			
Rep. Lang		1		
Rep. Littlefield	1			
Rep. Mackie		1		
Rep. O'Hara	1			
Rep. Ploszaj	1			
Rep. Silber	1			
Rep. Terry	1			
Rep. Trottier		1		
Rep. Varney	1			
Rep. Comtois	1			
Rep. Sylvia	1			
TOTALS	15	3		

Motion	Rep. Johnson	
Second	Rep. O'Hara	
to accept lease agr	eement by Court H	louse (Exhibit A) -
	YES	NO
Rep.Howard	1	
Rep. Aldrich		1
Rep. Bean	1	
Rep. Bordes	1	
Rep. Harvey-Bolia	1	
Rep. Hough	1	
Rep. Johnson	1	
Rep. Lang	1	
Rep. Littlefield	1	
Rep. Mackie	1	
Rep. O'Hara	1	
Rep. Ploszaj	1	
Rep. Silber		1
Rep. Terry		1
Rep. Trottier	1	
Rep. Varney	1	
Rep. Comtois		1
Rep. Sylvia	1	
TOTALS	1.4	4
TOTALS	14	4

Motion	Rep. Terry		
Second	Rep. Comtois		
	motion to adjourn		
	YES	NO	Abstain
Rep.Howard	1		
Rep. Aldrich	1		
Rep. Bean	1		
Rep. Bordes	1		
Rep. Harvey-Bolia	1		
Rep. Hough	1		
Rep. Johnson	1		
Rep. Lang	1		
Rep. Littlefield	1		
Rep. Mackie	1		
Rep. O'Hara	1		
Rep. Ploszaj	1		
Rep. Silber	1		
Rep. Terry	1		
Rep. Trottier	1		
Rep. Varney	1		
Rep. Comtois	1		
Rep. Sylvia	1		
TOTALS	18	0	

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES BUREAU OF PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT STANDARD LEASE AGREEMENT

Table of Contents

1.	Parties to the Lease:				
	1.1	The Lessor:	5		
	1.2	The Lessee:	5		
2.	Demise	e of the Premises:	5		
3.	Effective Date; Term; Delays; Extensions; and Conditions upon Commencement:				
	3.1	Effective Date:	5		
	3.2	Occupancy Term:	6		
	3.3	Delay in Occupancy and Rental Payment Commencement:	6		
	3.4	Extension of Term:	6		
	3.5	Conditions on the Commencement and Extension of Term:	6		
4.	Rent: .		6		
	4.1	Rent:	6		
	4.2	Taxes and Assessments:	6		
5.	Conditi	ional Obligation of the State:	7		
6.	Utilitie	s:	7		
	6.1	General Provisions:	7		
	6.2	Sewer and Water Services:	7		
	6.3	Electrical and Lighting:	8		
7.	Use of	Premises:	8		
8.	Mainte	nance and Repair by the Landlord:	8		
	8.1	General Provisions:	8		
	8.2	Maintenance and Repair of Broken Glass:	8		
	8.3	Recycling:	8		
	8.4	Window Cleaning:	8		
	8.5	Snow Plowing and Removal:	8		
	8.6	Parking Lot Maintenance:	9		
	8.7	Site Maintenance:	9		
	8.8	Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC):	9		
	8.9	Maintenance and Repair of Lighting , Alarm Systems, Exit Signs, etc:	10		

Landlord Initials:

Date: 1/21/2

	8.10	Interior Finishes and Surfaces:	. 10
	8.11	Janitorial Services:	. 10
	8.12	Failure to Maintain, Tenant's Remedy:	.10
9.	Manne	er of Work, Compliance with Laws and Regulations:	. 11
	9.1	Barrier-Free Accessibility:	. 11
	9.2	Work Clean Up:	.11
	9.3	State Energy Code:	. 11
	9.4	Alterations, etc:	.11
	9.5	Ownership, Removal of Alterations, Additions or Improvements:	11
10.	New Co	onstruction, Additions, Renovations or Improvement to the Premises:	11
	10.1	Provision of Work, etc:	12
	10.2	Schedule of Completion:	12
	10.3	Landlord's Delay in Completion; Failure to Complete, Tenant's Options:	12
11.	Quite E	njoyment:	12
12.	Signs: .		12
13.	Inspect	ion:	13
14.	Assignn	nent and Sublease:	13
15.	Insuran	ce:	13
	15.1	Workers Compensation Insurance:	13
16.	Indemn	ification:	13
	16.1	Acts or Omissions of Landlord:	13
	16.2	Landlord's Failure to Perform Obligations:	13
	16.3	Tenant's Acts or Omissions Excepted:	13
17.	Fire, Da	mage and Eminent Domain:	14
	17.1	Landlord's Repair:	14
	17.2	Tenant's Remedies:	14
	17.3	Landlord's Right to Damages:	14
18.	Event o	f Default: Termination by the Landlord and the Tenant:	14
	18.1	Event of Default: Landlord's Termination:	14
	18.2	Landlord's Default: Tenant's Remedies:	14
	18.3	Rights Hereunder:	14
19.	Surrend	er of the Premises:	15
20.	Hazardo	ous Substances:	15
	20.1	Disclosure:	15
	20.2	Maintenance/Activity Compliance:	15

	20.3	Action to Remove/Remediate:	15
	20.4	Non-Permitted use, Generation, Storage or Disposal:	15
	20.5	Asbestos:	15
	20.6	Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS):	15
21.	Broker'	s Fees and Indemnification:	16
22.	Notice:		16
23.	Require	ed Property Management and Contact Persons:	16
	23.1	Property Management:	16
	23.2	Tenant's Contact Person:	16
24.	Landlor	d's Relation to the State of New Hampshire:	16
25.	Compli	ance by Landlord with Laws and Regulations/Equal Employment Opportunity:	16
	23.1	Compliance with Laws, etc:	16
	23.2	Discrimination:	16
	23.3	Funding Source:	16
26.	Person	nel:	17
27.	Bankru	ptcy and Insolvency:	17
28.	Miscell	aneous:	17
	28.1	Extent of Instrument, Choice of Laws, Amendment, etc:	17
	28.2	No Waiver or Breach:	17
	28.3	Unenforceable Terms:	17
	28.4	Meaning of "Landlord" and "Tenant":	17
	28.5	Headings:	17
	28.6	Entire Agreement:	17
	28.7	No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity:	17
	28.8	Third Parties:	17
	28.9	Special Provisions:	17
	28.10	Incompatible use:	17
	Signatu	ıres, Notary, Approvals:	18
Exł	nibit A –	Schedule of Payments	19
Exł	nibit B –	Janitorial Services	20
Exł		Provisions for Architecturally Barrier-Free Accessibility, "Clean Air" Compliance, Improvements,	
		Recycling, and Energy Conservation	
Fxl	nihit D –	Special Provisions	25

ATTACHMENTS REQUIRED PRIOR TO SUBMITTAL FOR FINAL APPROVALS:

- 1. Letter of Opinion regarding lease issued by State of New Hampshire "Architectural Barrier-Free Design Committee".
- 2. Certificate of Insurance issued by landlord's insurance provider documenting provision of coverage required under the lease (section 15).
- 3. "Vendor Number" assigned to landlord by the Bureau of Purchase and Property; number must be provided prior to lease submittal to Governor and Executive Council.

SUPPLEMENTAL PLANS AND SPECIFICATION REQUIRED PRIOR TO SUBMITTAL FOR FINAL APPROVALS:

- 1. "Demise of Premise" floor plan(s): Authorized Landlord and Tenant signature with date of signature required on each.
 - a. Provide plans specifying the extent of the Premises designated for the Tenant's Exclusive use, as well as any "shared" space(s) to which the Tenant shall have use and access, such as shared entrance lobbies, stairs, elevators and rest rooms. Floor plans shall show the location of the demised premises within the building to which it is a part, depiction of the location of the demised premises within the building to which it is a part, depiction of the public and staff entrances, windows, rest rooms, and description of the basic functional areas such as office, storage, conference or reception space.
 - b. In the instance provision of parking is included in the terms of the lease, provide detailed site sketch or detailed description of any parking areas designated for the use of the Tenant during the Term. Illustrate and/or note all parking spaces designated for the Tenant's exclusive use, or shared use in common with others, and/or spaces which may be used by the general public. Specify all parking spaces, access aisles and accessible paths of travel provided for conformance with barrier-free access requirement for the Premises and/or the building to which the Premises is a part.
- 2. "Design-Build" floor plan(s) and specifications: Authorized Landlord and Tenant signatures with date of signature required on each:
 - a. In the event renovation, new construction or improvements are to be made under the terms of the Lease, provide all final/agreed drawings and specifications describing the work, which shall include but not be limited to:
 - i. Tenant's "Design-Build floor plan(s)"
 - ii. Tenant's "Design-Build Fit-Up Specifications"
- 3. The documents listed in items 1 & 2 above shall be part of the finding agreement, therefore provide minimum three originals, one each distrusted to :
 - a. Tenant
 - b. Landlord
 - c. State of New Hampshire, Department of Administrative Services, Bureau of Planning and Management.

SUPPLEMENTAL DOCUMENTATION REQURED FOR SUBMITTAL FOR FINAL APPROVALS:

- 1. Office of Secretary of State "Certificate of Good Standing" (CGS): needed by business organizations and trade names. Individuals contracting in their own name do not need a "CGS".
- 2. Certificate of Vote/Authority (CVA): needed by business entities, municipalities and trade names. Individuals contracting in their own name do not need a "CVA".

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES BUREAU OF PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT

STANDARD LEASE AGREEMENT

	of Lease is made this	8		
	r (who is hereinafter r	referred to as the "La	andlord") is:	
Name: Count (individual or c				
State of Incorp				
(if applicable)	Olation: 1771			
	ess: 34 County Drive	=		
	(principal place of b		,	
Laconia		NH	03246	(603) 527-5400
City		State	Zip	Telephone number
1.2 The Lessee	e (who is hereinafter r	eferred to as the "Te	enant") is: THE ST	ATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE,
	rough its Director or (•
	ame: Department of A		ces, Bureau of Cour	t Facilities
•				
Address: 25 Ca	apitol Street, Room 11	.5		
C	- Collaboration of To		20)	
Sireet Address (official location of Te	nani s vusiness offic	LE)	
Concord	NH	03301		(603) 271-3936
City	State	Zip		Telephone number
Demise of the P	Premises:	WITNESSET	TH THAT:	** *
For and in consi	deration of the rent as	nd the mutual cover	nants and agreement	ts herein contained, the Landlord her
For and in considemises to the T	deration of the rent are	nd the mutual cover hereby leases from	nants and agreement the Landlord, the fo	ollowing premises (hereinafter called
For and in consi demises to the T "Premises") for	deration of the rent are enant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define	nd the mutual cover hereby leases from	nants and agreement the Landlord, the fo	ollowing premises (hereinafter called
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for	deration of the rent and enant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth:	nd the mutual cover hereby leases from d herein) at the Re	nants and agreement the Landlord, the fo ent, (as defined here	ollowing premises (hereinafter called
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa	deration of the rent and enant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 640	nd the mutual cover hereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem	nants and agreement the Landlord, the fo ent, (as defined here	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and conditi
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address,	deration of the rent and enant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth:	nd the mutual cover thereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space	nants and agreement the Landlord, the fo ent, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and conditi
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, the Laconia	deration of the rent and enant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 640	nd the mutual cover thereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space	the Landlord, the foot, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/03246	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and conditi
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address,	deration of the rent and enant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 640	nd the mutual cover thereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space	nants and agreement the Landlord, the fo ent, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and conditi
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spatesteet address, a Laconia City	deration of the rent and the Tenant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 of the building name, floor of the tenant	the mutual cover thereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space to NH State	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of space)
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, Laconia City The demise of t	deration of the rent at renant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 (building name, floor)	nd the mutual cover hereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space NH State of: approximately	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of the terms and condition of the condition of the called ein)
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, Laconia City The demise of the (provide square)	deration of the rent at renant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 (building name, floor) the premises consists footage of the leased.	nd the mutual cover hereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space NH State of: approximately space)	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here lent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of space) of space
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, Laconia City The demise of to (provide square) The Demise of the stairways and electric consideration of the consideration of the stairways and electric consideration of the consi	deration of the rent and the Tenant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 of the building name, floor of the premises consists footage of the leased this space shall be together the premises consists footage of the leased this space shall be together the premises consists footage of the leased this space shall be together the premises consists footage of the leased the space shall be together the premises consists footage of the leased the space shall be together the premises consists footage of the leased the space shall be together the premises consists footage of the leased the space shall be together the premises consists footage of the leased the space shall be together the space shall be together the premises consists footage of the leased the space shall be together the	and the mutual cover thereby leases from the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space NH State of: approximately space) ether with the right that access thereto, and the space of the sp	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip 17,076 square feet of to use in common, we the lavatories neares	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of space) of space with others entitled thereto, the hallwest thereto. "Demise Documentation"
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spate (street address, and Laconia City The demise of to the Consideration of the Demise of the Stairways and elebeen provided with the Tourise of the Consideration of the Stairways and elebeen provided with the Tourise of the Consideration o	deration of the rent and the Tenant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 (building name, floor) the premises consists footage of the leased this space shall be together evators necessary for swhich includes accurate.	the mutual cover thereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space NH State of: approximately space) ether with the right the access thereto, and to the floor plans depict.	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip 17,076 square feet of to use in common, we the lavatories neares ecting the Premises s	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition (suite # of space) of space with others entitled thereto, the hallwest thereto. "Demise Documentation" showing the extent of the space for
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, Laconia City The demise of to stairways and elebeen provided versal to the control of the control	deration of the rent and the Tenant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 (building name, floor of the premises consists footage of the leased; this space shall be together evators necessary for a which includes accurative use and all areas to	the mutual cover thereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space to NH State of: approximately space) ether with the right the access thereto, and the tet floor plans depict to be used in common	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip 17,076 square feet of the lavatories neares coting the Premises of m with others, togeth	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of space) of space with others entitled thereto, the hallways thereto. "Demise Documentation" showing the extent of the space for her with site plan showing all entrance
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, Laconia City The demise of to (provide square) The Demise of the stairways and eleben provided v Tenants' exclusion the Premises and	deration of the rent and the Tenant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 (building name, floor of the premises consists footage of the leased this space shall be together evators necessary for a which includes accurative use and all areas to dall parking areas for	nd the mutual cover hereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basemon which the space NH State of: approximately space) ether with the right that access thereto, and the floor plans depict the be used in common the Tenant's use; the	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip 17,076 square feet of to use in common, we the lavatories neares on with others, togethese documents have	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of space) of space with others entitled thereto, the hallways thereto. "Demise Documentation" showing the extent of the space for her with site plan showing all entrance been reviewed, accepted, agreed-to
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, Laconia City The demise of to (provide square) The Demise of the stairways and eleben provided v Tenants' exclusion the Premises and	deration of the rent and the Tenant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 (building name, floor of the premises consists footage of the leased; this space shall be together evators necessary for a which includes accurative use and all areas to	nd the mutual cover hereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basemon which the space NH State of: approximately space) ether with the right that access thereto, and the floor plans depict the be used in common the Tenant's use; the	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip 17,076 square feet of to use in common, we the lavatories neares on with others, togethese documents have	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of space) of space with others entitled thereto, the hallwest thereto. "Demise Documentation" showing the extent of the space for her with site plan showing all entrance been reviewed, accepted, agreed-to
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, a Laconia City The demise of t (provide square) The Demise of the stairways and elebeen provided when the Premises and signed by both p	the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 debuilding name, floor of the premises consists footage of the leased; this space shall be together evators necessary for evhich includes accurative use and all areas to dall parking areas for parties and placed on formatters.	the mutual cover thereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space NH State of: approximately space) ether with the right the access thereto, and the floor plans depict the the Tenant's use; the file, and shall be deepended.	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip 17,076 square feet of to use in common, we the lavatories neares cting the Premises of the with others, togethere documents have	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of space) of space with others entitled thereto, the hallwast thereto. "Demise Documentation" showing the extent of the space for her with site plan showing all entrance been reviewed, accepted, agreed-to ease document.
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, Laconia City The demise of to (provide square) The Demise of to stairways and elebeen provided we Tenants' exclusing the Premises and signed by both p Effective Date;	the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 (building name, floor of the premises consists footage of the leased: his space shall be toge evators necessary for a which includes accurative use and all areas to dall parking areas for parties and placed on form; Delays; Exter	ond the mutual cover thereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space in NH State of: approximately space) ether with the right the access thereto, and the space in common the Tenant's use; the file, and shall be deen asions; and Conditional designations.	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip 17,076 square feet of to use in common, we the lavatories neares citing the Premises of m with others, togeth lesse documents have semed as part of the lesse ions upon Comments	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of space) of space with others entitled thereto, the hallwast thereto. "Demise Documentation" showing the extent of the space for her with site plan showing all entrance been reviewed, accepted, agreed-to ease document.
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, Laconia City The demise of the Company of the Demise of the Stairways and eleben provided was the Premises and signed by both p Effective Date; 3.1 Effective Date;	deration of the rent and the Tenant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 (building name, floor of the premises consists footage of the leased; this space shall be toget evators necessary for a which includes accurative use and all areas to dall parking areas for parties and placed on for Term; Delays; Extenate: The effective day	ond the mutual cover thereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space in NH State of: approximately space) ether with the right that access thereto, and the te floor plans depict the be used in common the Tenant's use; the file, and shall be deen the sions; and Conditions of Agreement sides of Agreement sides.	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip 17,076 square feet of to use in common, we the lavatories neares citing the Premises of m with others, togeth lesse documents have emed as part of the less ions upon Commentall be:	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of space) of space with others entitled thereto, the hallwast thereto. "Demise Documentation" showing the extent of the space for her with site plan showing all entrance been reviewed, accepted, agreed-to ease document. ncement:
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, Laconia City The demise of the Company of the Demise of the Stairways and eleben provided was the Premises and signed by both p Effective Date; 3.1 Effective Date;	deration of the rent and the Tenant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 (building name, floor of the premises consists footage of the leased; this space shall be toget evators necessary for a which includes accurative use and all areas to dall parking areas for parties and placed on for Term; Delays; Extenate: The effective day	ond the mutual cover thereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basem on which the space in NH State of: approximately space) ether with the right that access thereto, and the te floor plans depict the be used in common the Tenant's use; the file, and shall be deen the sions; and Conditions of Agreement sides of Agreement sides.	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip 17,076 square feet of to use in common, we the lavatories neares citing the Premises of m with others, togeth lesse documents have emed as part of the less ions upon Commentall be:	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of space) of space with others entitled thereto, the hallwast thereto. "Demise Documentation" showing the extent of the space for her with site plan showing all entrance been reviewed, accepted, agreed-to ease document. ncement:
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, Laconia City The demise of t (provide square) The Demise of t stairways and eleben provided v Tenants' exclusithe Premises and signed by both p Effective Date; 3.1 Effective Date; 3.1th	the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 (building name, floor of the premises consists footage of the leased this space shall be toge evators necessary for evhich includes accurative use and all areas to dall parking areas for parties and placed on forth the effective data agon the last day of	nd the mutual cover hereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basemon which the space NH State of: approximately space) ether with the right to access thereto, and to the Tenant's use; the file, and shall be dee asions; and Conditions and Conditions day of Janu December	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip 17,076 square feet of to use in common, we the lavatories neares citing the Premises of m with others, togeth lesse documents have emed as part of the less ions upon Commentall be:	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition and the space of space with others entitled thereto, the hallwest thereto. "Demise Documentation" showing the extent of the space for mer with site plan showing all entrances been reviewed, accepted, agreed-to ease document. Incement:
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, Laconia City The demise of t (provide square) The Demise of t stairways and eleben provided v Tenants' exclusithe Premises and signed by both p Effective Date; 3.1 Effective Date; 3.1th	deration of the rent and the Tenant, and the Tenant the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 (building name, floor of the premises consists footage of the leased; this space shall be toget evators necessary for a which includes accurative use and all areas to dall parking areas for parties and placed on for Term; Delays; Extenate: The effective day	nd the mutual cover hereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basemon which the space NH State of: approximately space) ether with the right to access thereto, and to the Tenant's use; the file, and shall be dee asions; and Conditions and Conditions day of Janu December	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip 17,076 square feet of to use in common, we the lavatories neares citing the Premises of m with others, togeth lesse documents have emed as part of the less ions upon Commentall be:	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of space) of space with others entitled thereto, the hallwest thereto. "Demise Documentation" showing the extent of the space for her with site plan showing all entrance been reviewed, accepted, agreed-to ease document. ncement:
For and in considemises to the T "Premises") for hereinafter set for Location of Spa (street address, Laconia City The demise of t (provide square) The Demise of t stairways and eleben provided v Tenants' exclusion the Premises and signed by both p Effective Date; 3.1 Effective Date; Commencin 31th	the Term, (as define orth: ace to be leased: 64 (building name, floor of the premises consists footage of the leased this space shall be toge evators necessary for evhich includes accurative use and all areas to dall parking areas for parties and placed on forth the effective data agon the last day of	nd the mutual cover hereby leases from d herein) at the Re Court Street, Basemon which the space NH State of: approximately space) ether with the right to access thereto, and to the Tenant's use; the file, and shall be dee asions; and Conditions and Conditions day of Janu December	the Landlord, the form, (as defined here ent & 2 nd Floor is located, and unit/ 03246 Zip 17,076 square feet of to use in common, we the lavatories neares citing the Premises of m with others, togeth lesse documents have emed as part of the less ions upon Commentall be:	ollowing premises (hereinafter called ein) and upon the terms and condition of space) of space with others entitled thereto, the hallwast thereto. "Demise Documentation" showing the extent of the space for mer with site plan showing all entrance been reviewed, accepted, agreed-to ease document.

- 3.2 Occupancy Term: Occupancy of the Premises and commencement of rentals payments shall be for a term (hereinafter called the "Term") of 4 year(s) commencing on the 1st day of January, in the year 2021, unless sooner terminated in accordance with the Provisions hereof.
- 3.3 Delay in Occupancy and Rental Payment Commencement: In the event of the Effective Date of the Agreement being prior to that which is set forth for Occupancy Term in 3.2. herein, commencement of the Tenant's occupancy of the Premises and payment of rent shall be delayed until construction and/or renovation of the Premises is complete and a copy of the "Certificate of Occupancy" (if said certificate is required by the local code enforcement official having jurisdiction) for the Premises has been delivered to the Tenant; the parties hereto agree this shall be upon the date set forth in 3.2 Occupancy Term herein. Upon this date the Tenant shall commence payment of rent in conformance with the terms and conditions herein and as set forth in the Schedule of Payments included and attached hereto as "Exhibit A". Notwithstanding the foregoing, commencement of occupancy and rental payments shall be further conditioned upon all other terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement herein.
 - A) "Completion" defined as "Substantial Completion": Notwithstanding anything contained in the Agreement to the contrary, it is understood and agreed by both Parties that "complete" shall mean "substantially completed". "Substantial Completion" is defined as no leasehold improvement deficiencies that would unreasonably adversely affect the Tenant's occupancy and/or business operations, nor would the installation or repairs of such deficiencies unreasonably adversely affect the Tenant's business operation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing shall relieve the Landlord from their responsibility to fully complete all agreed renovations set forth or attached hereto.
- 3.5 Conditions on the Commencement and Extension of Term:

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, it is hereby understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this lease and the commencement of any Term, and any amendment or extension thereof, is conditioned upon its' approval by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire and, in the event that said approval is not given until after the date for commencement of the Term, the Term shall begin on the date of said approval. In the event that said approval request is denied, then this Lease shall thereupon immediately terminate, and all obligations hereunder of the parties hereto shall cease.

4. Rent:

- 4.1 Rent: During the Term hereof and any extended Term, the Tenant shall pay the Landlord annual rent (hereinafter called the "Rent") payable in advance at the Landlord's address set forth in Section 1 above, in twelve equal monthly installments. The first such installment shall be due and payable on the following date:
 (insert month, date and year) January 1, 2021
 The rent due and payable for each year of the term, and any supplemental provisions affecting or escalating said rent or specifying any additional payments for any reason, shall be as set forth in a Schedule of Payments made a part hereto and attached herein as "Exhibit A".
- **4.2 Taxes and other Assessments:** The Landlord shall be responsible for, and pay for, all taxes and other assessment(s) applicable to the Premises.

Landlord Initials: Date: 1/21/21

Page 6 of 30

5. Conditional Obligation of the State:

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Lease to the contrary, it is hereby expressly understood and agreed by the Landlord that all obligations of the Tenant hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the Tenant be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the Tenant shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall have the right to terminate this Lease in whole or in part immediately upon giving the Landlord notice of such termination. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account in the event funding for the account from which the "rent" specified for the lease herein is terminated or reduced. It is further expressly understood and agreed by the Landlord that in the event the State of New Hampshire makes available State owned facilities for the housing of the Tenant the Tenant may, at its' option, serve thirty (30) days written notice to the Landlord of its intention to cancel the Lease in whole or in part. Whenever the Tenant decides to cancel the Lease in whole or in part under this Section the Tenant shall vacate all or part of the Premises within a thirty (30) day period. The Lease to the portion of the Premises vacated shall henceforth be canceled and void, while the Lease to the portion of the Premises still occupied shall remain in effect, with a pro rata abatement of the rent made by the parties hereto.

6.	Utilities: Select one of the following standard clauses specifying the party(s) responsible for the provision of utilities indicating the applicable clause with an "x". If neither clause provides an adequate or accurate explanation provide a detailed explanation as a "Special Provision" in "Exhibit D" herein.
	The Landlord shall furnish all utilities and the Tenant shall remit reimbursement for their provision no later than thirty (30) days after receipt of Landlord's copy of the utility invoice(s). Any exceptions to the forgoing specifying certain utilities which the Landlord will provide with no reimbursement payment from the Tenant shall be listed in the space below: Exceptions:
X	OR: The Landlord shall at their own and sole expense furnish all utilities, the Tenant shall make no reimbursement. Any exceptions to the forgoing specifying certain utilities that the Tenant shall be responsible for arranging and making direct payment to the provider thereof shall be listed in the space below: Exceptions: The Tenant shall be responsible for the direct payment of all data and telecommunications services.

- 6.1 General Provisions: The Landlord agrees to furnish heat, ventilation and air-conditioning to the Premises in accordance with current industry standards as set forth by the American Industrial Hygiene Association or AIHA and the American Society of Heating, Refrigeration and Air-Conditioning Engineers, Inc. or ASHRAE during the Tenant's business hours, the indoor air temperature of the Premises shall range from 68° F to 75° F during the winter, and 69° F to 76° F in the summer; if humidity control is provided relative humidity in the Premises shall range from 30% to 60%. During the Tenant's business hours heating, ventilation and air-conditioning shall also be provided to any common hallways, stairways, elevators and lavatories which are part of the building to which the Premises are a part. The Tenant agrees that provision of heating, ventilation and air-conditioning is subject to reasonable interruptions due to the Landlord making repairs, alterations, maintenance or improvements to the system, or the infrequent occurrence of causes beyond the Landlord's control. All Heating and Ventilation Control systems and filters shall be cleaned and maintained by the Landlord in accordance with ASHRAE and AIHA standards, and in conformance with the provisions of Section 8 "Maintenance and Repair" herein, and in a manner sufficient to provide consistent compliance with the State of New Hampshire's Clean Indoor Air Standards" (RSA 10:B). If the premises are not equipped with an air handling system that provides centralized air-conditioning or humidity control the provisions set forth herein regarding these particular systems shall not apply.
- **6.2** Sewer and Water Services: The Landlord shall provide and maintain in good and proper working order all sewer and water services to the Premises. Provision of said services shall include payment of all charges, expenses or fees incurred with provision of said services. All sewer and water services shall be provided and maintained in conformance with all applicable regulatory laws and ordinances.

- 6.3 Electrical and Lighting: The Landlord shall furnish all electrical power distribution, outlets and lighting in compliance with the most current National Electrical Code standards. Lighting fixtures throughout the Premises shall be capable of providing illumination levels in accordance with ANSI/IES Standards for Office Lighting in effect on the date of commencement of the term herein. Lighting for exterior areas and other applications shall conform to the recommended levels in the current IES Lighting Handbook in effect on the date of commencement of the term herein.
- 7. Use of Premises:

The Tenant shall use the premises for the purpose of: Belknap County Courthouse

and for any other reasonable purposes that may arise in the course of the Tenant's business.

8. Maintenance and Repair by the Landlord:

8.1 General Provisions: The Landlord shall at its own expense, maintain the exterior and interior of the Premises in good repair and condition, including any "common" building spaces such as parking areas, walkways, public lobbies, and restrooms, and including all hallways, passageways, stairways, and elevators which provide access to the Premises. The Landlord agrees to make any and all repairs and perform all maintenance to the Premises or any appurtenance thereto, which may become necessary during the Term or any extension or amendment of the Term. These repairs and maintenance requirements shall be fulfilled whether they are ordered by a public authority having jurisdiction, requested by the Tenant, or are dictated by reasonable and sound judgment, and include but are not limited to: The repair, and if necessary the replacement of any existent roof, walls, floors, doors and entry ways, interior finishes, foundations, windows, sidewalks, ramps and stairs, heating, air-conditioning and ventilation systems, plumbing, sewer, and lighting systems, and all operating equipment provided by the Landlord. Maintenance shall also include timely and consistent provision of any and all pest control which may become necessary within the Premises. Maintenance to areas or equipment which provide compliance with the Federal "American's with Disabilities Act" (ADA) and/or any State or Municipal codes or ordinances specifying requirements for architectural barrier-free access shall be performed regularly and with due diligence, in order to ensure continuity of compliance with all applicable regulations. The Landlord shall meet with the Tenant upon request and as necessary to review and discuss the condition of the Premises.

See EXHIBIT D herein for text modifying Section 8.2.

- 8.2 Maintenance and Repair of Broken Glass: The Landlord shall replace any and all structurally damaged or broken glass the same day that they are notified by the Tenant, or the damage is observed. In the event that the Landlord is unable to procure and/or install the replacement glass within the same day, they shall notify the Tenant in writing prior to the close of business that day, providing an explanation as to the cause of the delay and the date the damage will be corrected. In the instance of delayed repair, the Landlord shall remove the damaged or broken glass the same day it is noticed or reported, and secure the opening and/or damaged area to the satisfaction of the Tenant.
- **8.3 Recycling:** The Landlord shall cooperate with the Tenant to meet the requirements for waste reduction and recycling of materials pursuant to all Federal, State, and Municipal laws and regulations which are or may become effective or amended during the Term.
- **8.4 Window Cleaning:** The Landlord shall clean both the exterior and interior surfaces of all windows in the Premises annually. Window cleaning shall be completed no later than July 1st of every year.
- 8.5 Snow Plowing and Removal: The Landlord shall make best efforts to provide for rapid and consistent ice and snow plowing and/or removal from all steps, walkways, doorways, sidewalks, driveway entrances and parking lots, including accessible parking spaces and their access aisles, providing sanding and/or salt application as needed. Plowing and/or removal shall be provided prior to Tenant's normal working hours, however, additional work shall be provided as needed during the Tenant's working hours if ice accumulates or if more than a 2" build-up of snow occurs. Best efforts shall be made to provide and maintain bare pavement at all times. In addition to the foregoing, the Landlord shall provide plowing and/or ice and snow removal service with diligence sufficient to maintain availability of the number of Tenant parking spaces designated in the Agreement herein for the Tenant's use, clearing said spaces within twelve (12) hours of snow and/or ice accumulations. The Landlord shall sweep and remove winter sand and salt deposited in the above referenced areas by no later than June 1st of each year.

8.6 Parking Lot Maintenance: Landlord shall maintain and repair all parking lot areas, walks and access ways to the parking lot; maintenance shall include paving, catch basins, curbs, and striping. Provision of parking lot maintenance shall include but not be limited to the following:

A) Inspect pavement for cracks and heaves semi-annually. Monitor to identify source of cracking, if excessive moisture is found under pavement surfaces due to poor drainage, remove pavement, drain properly, and replace

with new pavement.

B) Re-stripe the parking lot at least once every three (3) years or as necessary to maintain clear designation of spaces,

directional symbols and access aisles.

C) Maintain all parking lot and exterior directional signage, replacing signs as necessary when substantially faded, damaged or missing.

8.7 Site Maintenance: Landlord shall maintain and provide as follows:

- A) The Landlord shall maintain all lawns, grass areas and shrubs, hedges or trees in a suitable, neat appearance and keep all such areas and parking areas free of refuse or litter. Any graffiti shall be promptly removed.
- B) The Landlord shall maintain and repair all exterior lighting fixtures and bulbs, providing same day maintenance and repair when possible.
- C) The Landlord shall clean and wash all exterior cleanable/washable surfaces and repaint all painted surfaces, including remarking painted lines and symbols in the parking lot and access lanes thereto, once every three years, except where surfaces are in disrepair in advance of this time frame, which case it shall be required on a more frequent basis.
- D) The Landlord shall regularly inspect and maintain the roof, including cleaning of roof drains, gutters, and scuppers on a regular basis, and timely control of snow and ice build-up. Flashings and other roof accessories shall be observed for signs of deterioration with remedy provided prior to defect. If interior leaks are detected, the cause shall be determined and a solution implemented as quickly as possible to prevent damage to interior finishes and fixtures. Landlord shall inspect roof seams annually, especially at curbs, parapets, and other places prone to leaks, investigate any ponding, etc. All work on the roof shall be conducted so as to maintain roof warranty.
- 8.8 Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC): The HVAC system in the Premises shall be maintained regularly and with due diligence in order to ensure continuous compliance with current industry standards set forth by the "American Industrial Hygiene Association" (AIHA) and the "American Society of Heating, Refrigeration and Air-Conditioning Engineers, Inc." (ASHRAE). All HVAC air filters shall be replaced on a semi-annual basis; and the air filters used in the HVAC system shall provide the greatest degree of particulate filtration feasible for use in the Premise's air handling system. All HVAC condensate pans shall be emptied and cleaned on a semi-annual basis. The Landlord shall keep a written record of the dates the required semi-annual HVAC maintenance is provided, submitting a copy of this record to the Tenant on the annual anniversary date of the agreement herein. Any moisture incursions and/or leaks into the Premises shall be repaired immediately, this shall include the repair and/or replacement of any HVAC component which caused the incursion, and the replacement of any and all interior surfaces which have become moisture ladened and cannot be dried in entirety to prevent possible future growth of mold.

A) Maintenance of Air Quality Standards: In the event that the referenced statutory requirements for indoor air quality are not met at any time during the term, the Landlord agrees to undertake corrective action within ten (10) days of notice of deficiency issued by the Tenant. The notice shall contain documentation of the deficiency, including objective analysis of the indoor air quality.

B) Landlord and Tenant agree to meet as requested by either party and review concerns or complaints regarding indoor air quality issues. In the event of any issue not being resolved to the mutual satisfaction of either party within thirty (30) days of such meeting, an independent qualified and licensed professional shall be retained to prepare an objective analysis of air quality, mechanical systems and operations/maintenance procedures. Should the analysis support the complaint of the Tenant, the cost of the report and corrective actions shall be borne by the Landlord. Should the report fail to support any need for corrective action or be the result of changes in occupancy count or space uses by the Tenant from the time of initial occupancy, the cost of the independent consultant shall be borne by the Tenant.

C) In addition to other provisions of this section, the Landlord hereby agrees to make their best effort to replace any and all malfunctioned HVAC systems or parts the same day that they are notified or observe the damage. In the event that the Landlord is unable to procure and/or install the replacement part, section or unit within said day, the Landlord must notify the Tenant in writing prior to the close of business that day to provide an explanation as to the cause for the delay and the date the deficiencies will be corrected. In this case, the Landlord shall provide temporary air circulation or heat to accommodate the Tenant until the deficiency is remedied.

8.9 Maintenance and Repair of Lighting, Alarm Systems, Exit Signs etc:

Maintenance within the premises shall include the Landlord's timely repair and/or replacement of all lighting fixtures, ballasts, starters, incandescent and fluorescent lamps as may be required. The Landlord shall provide and maintain all emergency lighting systems, fire alarm systems, sprinkler systems, exit signs and fire extinguishers in the Premises and/or located in the building to which the Premises are a part in conformance with requirements set forth by the State of New Hampshire Department of Safety, Fire Marshall's office and/or the requirements of the National Fire Protection Agency (NFPA). Said systems and fire extinguishers shall be tested as required and any deficiencies corrected. A report shall be maintained of all testing and corrections made, with a copy of the report furnished to the Tenant no later than thirty (30) days after each semi-annual update to the report.

8.10 Interior finishes and surfaces:

Any and all suspended ceiling tiles and insulation which becomes damp and/or water marked shall be replaced (tiles shall match existing in texture and color) no later than three (3) days from the date the damage or water incursion is reported by the Tenant or observed by the Landlord. The Landlord shall clean and wash all interior washable surfaces and repaint all interior painted surfaces in colors agreeable to the Tenant at least once every five years, except where surfaces are in disrepair in which case it shall be required on a more frequent basis.

- **8.11 Janitorial Services:** Provision of janitorial services to the Premises shall be as described below, and as specified in a schedule of services that shall be attached as "Exhibit B" hereto.
 - X Janitorial Services <u>shall be provided by the Landlord</u>, as defined and specified in the schedule of services attached as Exhibit B hereto.

OR:

Janitorial Services shall be provided by the Tenant, as defined and specified in the schedule of services attached as Exhibit B hereto.

8.12 Failure to Maintain, Tenant's Remedy: If the Landlord fails to maintain the Premises as provided herein, the Tenant shall give the Landlord written notice of such failure. If within ten (10) calendar days after such notice is given to the Landlord no steps to remedy the condition(s) specified have been initiated, the Tenant may, at their option, and in addition to other rights and remedies of Tenant provided hereunder, contract to have such condition(s) repaired, and the Landlord shall be liable for any and all expenses incurred by the Tenant resulting from the Landlord's failure. Tenant shall submit documentation of the expenses incurred to the Landlord, who shall reimburse the Tenant within thirty (30) days of receipt of said documentation of work. If the Landlord fails to reimburse the Tenant within thirty (30) days, the Tenant shall withhold the amount of the expense from the rental payment(s), reimbursing the Landlord only after the cost of any and all repair expenses have been recovered from the Landlord.

Landlord Initials: 39
Date: 1/21/2

Page 10 of 30

- 9. Manner of Work, Compliance with Laws and Regulations: All new construction, renovations and/or alterations to existing buildings, hereinafter known as "work" shall conform to the following:

 All work, whether undertaken as the Landlord's or Tenant's responsibility, shall be performed in a good workmanlike manner, and when completed shall be in compliance with all Federal, State, or municipal statute's building codes, rules, guidelines and zoning laws. Any permits required by any ordinance, law, or public regulation, shall be obtained by the party (Tenant or Landlord) responsible for the performance of the construction or alteration. The party responsible shall lawfully post any and all work permits required, and if a "certificate of occupancy" is required shall obtain the "certificate" from the code enforcement authority having jurisdiction prior to Tenant occupancy. No alteration shall weaken or impair the structure of the Premises, or substantially lessen its value. All new construction, alterations, additions or improvements shall be provided in accordance with the Tenant's design intent floor plans, specifications, and schedules; which together shall be called the "Tenant's Design-Build Documents". The Tenant's finalized version of the Design-Build Documents shall be reviewed, accepted, agreed-to and signed by both parties and shall be deemed as part of the lease document.
 - 9.1 Barrier-Free Accessibility: No alteration shall be undertaken which decreases, or has the effect of decreasing, architecturally Barrier-free accessibility or the usability of the building or facility below the standards and codes in force and applicable to the alterations as of the date of the performance. If existing elements, (such as millwork, signage, or ramps), spaces, or common areas are altered, then each such altered element, space, or common area shall be altered in a manner compliant with the Code for Barrier-Free Design (RSA 275 C:14, ABFD 300-303) and with all applicable provisions for the Americans with Disabilities Act Standards for Accessible Design, Section 4.4.4 to 4.1.3 "Minimum Requirements" (for new construction).
 - 9.2 Work Clean Up: The Landlord or Tenant, upon the occasion of performing any alteration or repair work, shall in a timely manner clean all affected space and surfaces, removing all dirt, debris, stains, soot or other accumulation caused by such work.
 - 9.3 State Energy Code: New construction and/or additions that add 25% or greater to the gross floor area of the existing building to which the Premises are a part and/or that are estimated to exceed one million (\$1,000,000) in construction costs, or renovations that exceed 25% of the existing gross floor area, shall conform to all applicable requirements of the State of New Hampshire Energy Code.
 - **9.4** Alterations, etc.: The Tenant may, at its own expense, make any alterations, additions or improvements to the premises; provided that the Tenant obtains prior written permission from the Landlord to perform the work. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
 - 9.5 Ownership, Removal of Alterations, Additions or Improvements: All alterations, additions or improvements which can be removed without causing substantial damage to the Premises, and where paid for by the Tenant, shall be the property of the Tenant at the termination of the Lease. This property may be removed by the Tenant prior to the termination of the lease, or within ten (10) days after the date of termination. With the exception of removal of improvements, alterations or renovations which were provided under the terms of the Agreement herein, the Tenant shall leave the Premises in the same condition as it was received, ordinary wear and tear excluded, in broom clean condition, and shall repair any damages caused by the removal of their property.

10. New construction, Additions, Renovations or Improvements to the Premises:

The following provisions shall be applicable to the Agreement herein if new construction, improvements or renovations are provided by the Landlord: The Tenant and Landlord have agreed that prior to Tenant occupancy and the commencement of rental payments the Landlord will complete certain new construction, additions, alterations, or improvements to the Premises, (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Improvements") for the purpose of preparing the same for the Tenant's occupancy. Such improvements shall be provided in conformance with the provisions set forth in Section 9 herein and in conformance with the Tenant's Design-Build specifications and plans which shall be reviewed, accepted, agreed-to and signed by both parties and shall be deemed as part of the lease document. It shall be the Landlord's responsibility to provide any and all necessary construction drawings and/or specifications, inclusive (if required for conformance with applicable permitting process) of provision of licensed architectural or engineering stamp(s), and abiding by all review and permitting processes required by the local code enforcement official having jurisdiction. In connection with these improvements the Landlord warrants, represents, covenants and agrees as follows:

Landlord Initials: Date: 12121

- 10.1 Provision of Work, etc.: Unless expressly otherwise agreed by both parties, all improvements shall be made at the Landlord's sole expense, with said provision amortized into the Rent set forth herein.
 - A) In the event Tenant has agreed to the Landlord making certain improvements that are not included within those provided at the sole expense of Landlord or not amortized within the Rent, payment shall either be paid in total after Landlord has successfully completed all agreed improvements, or be paid in accordance with a payment schedule which shall withhold a proportion of the total payment until after Landlord has successfully completed the agreed improvements. Tenant's total additional payment and agreed payment schedule shall be set forth in the Agreement herein as a provision within Exhibit A "Schedule of Payments" herein and be listed as a separate section to the Schedule of Payments.
 - 10.2 Schedule for Completion: All improvements shall be completed in accordance with the "Tenant's Design-Build Documents" which shall be reviewed, accepted, agreed-to and signed by both parties and shall be deemed as part of the lease document, and shall be completed on or before the date set forth in section 3.2 herein for commencement of the "Occupancy Term".
- 10.3 Landlord's Delay in Completion; Failure to Complete, Tenant's Options: If by reason of neglect or willful failure to perform on the part of the Landlord improvements to the Premises are not completed in accordance with the agreement herein, or the Premises are not completed within the agreed time frame, the Tenant may at its' option:
 - A) Termination of Lease: Terminate the Lease, in which event all obligations of the parties hereunder shall cease; or
 - B) Occupancy of Premises "As is": Occupy the Premises in its current condition, provided a "certificate of occupancy" has been issued for the Premises by the code enforcement official having jurisdiction, in which event the rent hereunder shall be decreased by the estimated proportionate cost of the scheduled improvements, reflecting the Landlord's failure to complete the improvements. The decreased rent shall remain in effect until such time the landlord completes the scheduled improvements; or
 - C) Completion of Improvements by Tenant: Complete the improvements at Tenant's own expense, in which case the amount of money expended by the Tenant to complete the improvements shall be offset and withheld against the rent to be paid hereunder; or
 - D) Delay Occupancy: The date for Tenant occupancy and commencement of rental payments set forth in Section 3.2 herein, shall at the Tenant's option, be postponed until possession of the Premises is given. In such instance the "Schedule of Payments" set forth in Exhibit A herein shall be amended to reflect the delayed inception date of the Tenant's rental and occupancy, with the date for termination also revised to expire the same number or years and/or months thereafter as originally set forth in the Agreement herein. Commencement of the amended Agreement shall be subject to the provisions of paragraph 3.5 herein.
- 11. Quiet Enjoyment: Landlord covenants and agrees the Tenant's quiet and peaceful enjoyment of the Premises shall not be disturbed or interfered with by the Landlord, or any person claiming by, through or under the Landlord. Routine maintenance or inspection of the Premises shall be scheduled with Tenant at least one week in advance, to occur during a mutually agreeable time frame, and to be negotiated in good faith by both parties. Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, the Tenant agrees and covenants that in the event of an emergency requiring the Landlord to gain immediate access to the Premises, access shall not be denied.
- 12. Signs: Tenant shall have the right to erect a sign or signs on the Premises identifying the Tenant, obtaining the consent of the Landlord prior to the installation of the signs; such consent shall not be unreasonably denied. All signs that have been provided by the Tenant shall be removed by them, at their own expense, at the end of the Term or any extension thereof. All damage due to such removal shall be repaired by the Tenant if such repair is requested by the Landlord.

Landlord Initials: 1/21/21
Date:

- 13. Inspection: Three (3) months prior to the expiration of the Term, the Landlord or Landlord's agents may enter the Premises during all reasonable working hours for the purpose of inspecting the same, or making repairs, or for showing the Premises to persons interested in renting it, providing that such entrance is scheduled at least 24 hours notice in advance with the Tenant. Six (6) months prior to the expiration of the term, the Landlord may affix to any suitable part of the Premises, or of the property to which the Premises are a part, a notice or sign for the purpose of letting or selling the Premises.
- 14. Assignment and Sublease: This lease shall not be assigned by the Landlord or Tenant without the prior written consent to the other, nor shall the Tenant sublet the Premises or any portion thereof without Landlord's written consent, such consent is not to be unreasonably withheld or denied. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Tenant may sublet the Premises or any portion thereof to a government agency under the auspices of the Tenant without Landlord's prior consent.

15. Insurance:

During the Term and any extension thereof, the Landlord shall at its sole expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following insurance with respect to the Premises and the property of which the Premises are a part: comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or property damage occurring on, (or claimed to have occurred on) in or about the Premises. Such insurance is to provide minimum insured coverage conforming to: General Liability coverage of not less than one million (\$1,000,000) per occurrence and not less than three million (\$3,000,000) general aggregate; with coverage of Excess/Umbrella Liability of not less than one million (\$1,000,000). The policies described herein shall be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire. Each certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to endeavor to provide the Tenant no less than ten (10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification of the policy. The Landlord shall deposit with the Tenant certificates of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement, (or for any Extension or Amendment thereof) which shall be attached and are incorporated herein by reference. During the Term of the Agreement the Landlord shall furnish the Tenant with certificate(s) of renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date of each of the policies.

- 15.1 Workers Compensation Insurance: To the extent the Landlord is subject to the requirements of NH RSA chapter 281-A, Landlord shall maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The Landlord shall furnish the Tenant proof of Workers' Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The Tenant shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for the Landlord, or any subcontractor of the Landlord, which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the Services under this Agreement.
- 16. Indemnification: Landlord will save Tenant harmless and will defend and indemnify Tenant from and against any losses suffered by the Tenant, and from and against any and all claims, liabilities or penalties asserted by, or on behalf of, any person, firm, corporation, or public authority:
 - 16.1 Acts or Omissions of Landlord: On account of, or based upon, any injury to a person or loss or damage to property, sustained or occurring, or which is claimed to have been sustained or to have occurred on or about the Premises, on account of or based upon the act, omission, fault, negligence or misconduct of the Landlord, its agents, servants, contractors, or employees.
 - 16.2 Landlord's Failure to Perform Obligations: On account of or resulting from, the failure of the Landlord to perform and discharge any of its covenants and obligations under this Lease and, in respect to the foregoing from and against all costs, expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) and liabilities incurred in, or in connection with, any such claim, or any action or proceeding brought thereon; and in the case of any action or proceeding being brought against the Tenant by reason of any such claim, the Landlord, upon notice from Tenant shall at Landlord's expense resist or defend such action or proceeding.
 - 16.3 Tenant's Acts or Omissions Excepted: Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing contained in this section shall be construed to require the Landlord to indemnify the Tenant for any loss or damage resulting from the acts or

omissions of the Tenant's servants or employees. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.

- 17. Fire, Damage and Eminent Domain: The Tenant and Landlord agree that in the event of fire or other damage to the Premises, the party first discovering the damage shall give immediate notice to the other party. Should all or a portion of the Premises, or the property to which they are a part, be substantially damaged by fire or other peril, or be taken by eminent domain, the Landlord or the Tenant may elect to terminate this Lease. When such fire, damage or taking renders the Premises substantially unsuitable for their intended use, a just and proportionate abatement of the rent shall be made as of the date of such fire, damage, or taking, remaining in effect until such time as the Tenant's occupancy and use has been restored in entirety.
 - 17.1 Landlord's Repair: In the event of damage to the Premises that can be repaired within ninety (90) days:
 - A) No later than five (5) days after the date of damage to the Premises, the Landlord shall provide the Tenant with written notice of their intention to repair the Premises and restore its previous condition; and,
 - B) The Landlord shall thereupon expeditiously, at their sole expense and in good and workmanlike manner, undertake and complete such repairs that are necessary to restore the Premises to its previous condition.
 - C) The Landlord may provide alternate temporary space for the Tenant until such time that the Premises are restored to a condition that is substantially suitable for the Tenant's intended use. Alternate temporary space is subject to the acceptance of the Tenant. Should said temporary space provide less square footage and/or limited services for the Tenant's use, a proportionate abatement of the rent shall be made.
 - 17.2 Tenant's Remedies: In the event the Premises cannot be repaired within ninety (90) days of said fire or other cause of damage, or the Tenant is unwilling or unable to wait for completion of said repair, the Tenant may, at its sole discretion, terminate the agreement herein effective as of the date of such fire or damage, without liability to the Landlord and without further obligation to make rental payments.
 - 17.3 Landlord's Right To Damages: The Landlord reserves, and the Tenant grants to the Landlord, all rights which the Landlord may have for damages or injury to the Premises, or for any taking by eminent domain, except for damage to the Tenant's fixtures, property, or equipment, or any award for the Tenant's moving expenses.
- 18. Event of Default; Termination by the Landlord and the Tenant:
 - 18.1 Event of Default; Landlord's Termination: In the event that:
 - A) Tenant's Failure to Pay Rent: The Tenant shall default in the payment of any installment of the rent, or any other sum herein specified, and such default shall continue for thirty (30) days after written notice thereof; or
 - B) Tenant's Breach of Covenants, etc.: The Tenant shall default in the observation of or performance of, any other of the Tenant's covenants, agreements, or obligations hereunder and such default is not corrected within thirty (30) days of written notice by the Landlord to the Tenant specifying such default and requiring it to be remedied then: The Landlord may serve ten (10) days written notice of cancellation of this Lease upon the Tenant, and upon the expiration of such ten days, this Lease and the Term hereunder shall terminate. Upon such termination the Landlord may immediately or any time thereafter, without demand or notice, enter into or upon the Premises (or any part thereon) and repossess the same.
 - 18.2 Landlord's Default: Tenant's Remedies: In the event that the Landlord defaults in the observance of any of the Landlord's covenants, agreements and obligations hereunder, and such default shall materially impair the habitability and use of the Premises by the Tenant, and is not corrected within thirty (30) days of written notice by the Tenant to the Landlord specifying such default and requiring it to be remedied, then the Tenant at its option, may withhold a proportionate amount of the rent until such default is cured, or it may serve a written five (5) day notice of cancellation of this Lease upon the Landlord, and upon the expiration of such a five day period the Lease shall terminate. If any such default of the Landlord does not materially impair the habitability and use of the Premises by the Tenant, the Landlord shall cure such default within thirty (30) days of written notice or within a reasonable alternative amount of time agreed upon in writing by Tenant, failing which, Tenant may terminate this Lease upon ten (10) days written notice to Landlord.
 - 18.3 Rights Hereunder: The rights granted under this Section are in addition to, and not in substitution for, any rights or remedies granted herein to the parties, or any rights or remedies at law, or in equity.
- 19. Surrender of the Premises: In the event that the Term, or any extension thereof, shall have expired or terminated, the Tenant shall peacefully quit and deliver up the Premises to the Landlord in as good order and condition, reasonable wear,

tear, and obsolescence and unavoidable casualties excepted, as they are in at the beginning of the term of this lease, and shall surrender all improvements, alterations, or additions made by the Tenant which cannot be removed without causing damage to the Premises. The Tenant shall remove all of its' personal property surrendering the Premises to the Landlord in broom clean condition.

20. Hazardous Substances:

- 20.1 Disclosure: The Landlord warrants that to their knowledge and belief, the Premises are free of present or potential contamination which may impact the health or safety of the occupants; examples include but are not limited to: hazardous substances such as asbestos, lead and/or mold.
- 20.2 Maintenance/Activity Compliance: In the event hazardous materials are present, the Landlord further warrants that all custodial, maintenance or other activities on the Premises will be conducted in compliance with applicable statues, regulations and/or accepted protocols regarding the handling of said materials.
- 20.3 Action to Remove/Remediate: The Landlord shall promptly take all actions that may be necessary to assess, remove, and/or remediate Hazardous Substances that are on, or in the Premises or the building to which the Premises is a part. Said action shall be to the full extent required by laws, rules, accepted industry standard protocols and/or other restrictions or requirements of governmental authorities relating to the environment, indoor air quality, or any Hazardous Substance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of 20.5 herein regarding Asbestos shall prevail.
- 20.4 Non-Permitted Use, Generation, Storage or Disposal: The Tenant shall not cause or permit Hazardous Substances to be used, generated, stored or disposed of in the Premises or the building to which it is a part. The Tenant may, however, use minimal quantities of cleaning fluid and office or household supplies that may constitute Hazardous Substances, but that are customarily present in and about premises used for the Permitted Use.

See EXHIBIT D herein for text modifying Section 20.5, Part A. 20.5 Asbestos:

- A) No later than thirty (30) days after the inception of the term herein, the Landlord shall provide the Tenant with the results of an asbestos inspection survey of the Premises and any common areas of the building which may affect the Tenant occupants or its clients. The inspection shall identify all accessible asbestos in these areas of the building and shall be performed by a person certified in accordance with State law and satisfactory to the Tenant. The results of the inspection shall be made a part of the Agreement herein.
- B) In the event that asbestos containing material are identified which are in the status of "significantly damaged" or "damaged" (as described in "40 CFR 763") these materials shall be abated in a manner satisfactory to the Tenant, including provision of acceptable air monitoring using Phase Contrast Microscopy.
- C) In the event that asbestos containing materials are identified, but which are not damaged, the Landlord shall install an operations and maintenance program satisfactory to the Tenant which is designed to periodically re-inspect asbestos containing materials and to take corrective action as specified in 20.5 (b) above when appropriate. Results of such re-inspections and all air quality monitoring shall be provided to the Tenant within 14 (fourteen) days of completion.

20.6 Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)

- A) The Landlord shall submit MSDS for any and all materials, including cleaning products, introduced to the Premises to the Tenant prior to use. This will enable the Tenant to review submittals for possible adverse health risks associated with the products.
- B) At time of occupancy by the Tenant, the Landlord shall provide the Tenant with MSDS for all products incorporated into the Work. This submittal shall be provided in duplicate form presented in three ring binders, categorized in Construction Standards Institute (CSI) format.

- 21. Broker's Fees and Indemnification: The Landlord agrees and warrants that the Tenant owes no commissions, fees or claims with any broker or finder with respect to the leasing of the Premises. All claims, fees or commissions with any broker or finder are the exclusive responsibility of the Landlord, who hereby agrees to exonerate and indemnify the Tenant against any such claims.
- 22. Notice: Any notice sent by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post Office, addressed to the parties at the addresses provided in Section 1 herein.
- 23. Required Property Management and Contact Persons: During the Term both parties shall be responsible for issuing written notification to the other if their contact person(s) changes, providing updated contact information at the time of said notice.
 - 23.1 Property Management: Notwithstanding the provisions of Section "22 Notice", the Landlord shall employ and/or identify a full time property manager or management team for the Premises who shall be responsible for addressing maintenance and security concerns for the Premises and issuing all reports, testing results and general maintenance correspondence due and required during the Term. The Landlord shall provide the Tenant with the information listed below for the designated management contact person for use during regular business hours and for 24-hour emergency response use.

LANDLORD'S PROPERTY MANAGEMENT CONTACT:

Name: Dustin Muzzey

Title: County Facilities Manager

Address: 34 County Drive, Laconia NH 03246 Phone: (603) 527-5400

Email Address: dshackett@belknapcounty.org

23.2 Tenant's Contact Person: Notwithstanding the provisions of Section "22 Notice", the Tenant shall employ and/or identify a designated contact person who shall be responsible for conveying all facility concerns regarding the Premises and/or receiving all maintenance reports, testing results and general correspondence during the term. The Tenant shall provide the Landlord with the information listed below for the designated contact person.

TENANT'S CONTACT PERSON:

Name: Sarah B. Lineberry

Title: Administrator IV, Bureau of Court Facilities

Address: 25 Capitol Street, Room 115, Concord, NH 03301 Phone: (603) 271-3936

Email Address: sarah.lineberry@das.nh.gov

24. Landlord's Relation to the State of New Hampshire: In the performance of this Agreement the Landlord is in all respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of the State of New Hampshire (the "State"). Neither the Landlord nor any of its officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

25. Compliance by Landlord with Laws and Regulations/Equal Employment Opportunity:

25.1 Compliance with Laws, etc: In connection with the performance of the Services set forth herein, the Landlord shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities which impose any obligations or duty upon the Landlord, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity laws. In addition, the Landlord shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

A) The Tenant reserves the right to offset from any amounts otherwise payable to the Landlord under this Agreement those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other

provision of law.

- **25.2 Discrimination:** During the term of this Agreement, the Landlord shall not discriminate against employees or applicants for employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
- 25.3 Funding Source: If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Landlord shall comply with all the provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the regulation of the United States Department of Labor (41 C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines of the State of New Hampshire or the United States issued to implement these regulations. The Landlord further agrees to permit the State or United States access to any of the Landlord's books, records and accounts for

the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

26. Personnel:

The Landlord shall at its' own expense provide all personnel necessary to perform any and/or all services which they have agreed to provide. The Landlord warrants that all personnel engaged in the services shall be qualified to perform the services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.

27. Bankruptcy and Insolvency: If the Landlord's leasehold estate shall be taken in execution, or by other process of law, or if any receiver or trustee shall be appointed for the business and property of the Landlord, and if such execution or other process, receivership or trusteeship shall not be discharged or ordered removed within sixty (60) days after the Landlord shall receive actual notice thereof, or if Landlord shall be adjudicated a bankrupt, or if Landlord shall make a general assignment of its leasehold estate for the benefit of creditors, then in any such event, the Tenant may terminate this lease by giving written notice thereof to the Landlord.

28. Miscellaneous:

- Extent of Instrument, Choice of Laws, Amendment, etc.: This Lease, which may be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall have been deemed an original but which shall constitute one and the same instrument, is to be construed according to the laws of the State of New Hampshire. It is to take effect as a sealed instrument, is binding upon, inures to the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by the parties hereto, and to their respective successors and assignees, and may be canceled, modified, or amended only by a written instrument executed and approved by the Landlord and the Tenant.
- 28.2 No Waiver or Breach: No assent by either party, whether express or implied, to a breach of covenant, condition or obligation by the other party, shall act as a waiver of a right for action for damages as a result of such breach, nor shall it be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the covenant, condition, or obligation.
- **28.3 Unenforceable Terms:** If any terms of this Lease, or any application thereof, shall be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease and any application of such terms shall not be affected thereby.
- 28.4 Meaning of "Landlord" and "Tenant": Where the context so allows, the meaning of the term "Landlord" shall include the employees, agents, contractors, servants, and licensees of the Landlord, and the term "Tenant" shall include the employees, agents, contractors, servants, and licensees of the Tenant.
- 28.5 **Headings:** The headings of this Lease are for purposes of reference only, and shall not limit or define the meaning hereof.
- **Entire Agreement:** This Lease embodies the entire agreement and understanding between the parties hereto, and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings relating to the subject matter hereof.
- 28.7 No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity: No provision of this Lease is intended to be, nor shall it be, interpreted by either party to be a waiver of sovereign immunity.
- **Third Parties:** The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties, and this agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
- **Special Provisions:** The parties' agreement (if any) concerning modifications to the foregoing standard provisions of this lease and/or additional provisions are set forth in Exhibit D attached and incorporated herein by reference.
- **28.10 Incompatible Use:** The Landlord will not rent, lease or otherwise furnish or permit the use of space in this building or adjacent buildings, or on land owned by or within the control of the Landlord, to any enterprise or activity whereby the efficient daily operation of the Tenant would be substantively adversely affected by the subsequent increase in noise, odors, or any other objectionable condition or activity.

TENANT: The State of New Hampshire, acting through its' Department of Administrative Services
Authorized by: (full name and title) Charles M. Arlinghaus
LANDLORD: (full name of corporation, LLC or individual) County of Belknap
Authorized by: (full name and title) Debra Shackett Muhra Brackett Signature
Print: Campy Administrator Name & Title
NOTARY STATEMENT: As Notary Public and/or Justice of the Peace, REGISTERED IN THE STATE OF: New Hampshire County OF: Bellenap UPON THIS DATE (insert full date) January 21, 2021 , appeared before me (print full name of notary) Jamie Flisworth the undersigned officer personally appeared (insert Landlord's signature) Maure Stracket who acknowledged him/herself to be (print officer's title, and the name of the corporation County Administration and that as such Officer, they are authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing
him/herself in the name of the corporation. In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official seal. (provide notary signature and seal) JAMIE L. ELLSWORTH, Notary Public My Commission Expires September 11, 2025 Recommendation(s) regarding the approval of the Agreement herein issued by the "Architectural Barrier-Free Design Committee" of the "Governors' Commission on Disability" have been set forth in a "Letter of Recommendation" which has
been attached hereto and made part of the Agreement herein by reference. Approved by the Department of Justice as to form, substance and execution:
Approval date:
Approving Attorney:
Approved by the Governor and Executive Council:
Approval date:
Signature of the Deputy Secretary of State:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF; the parties hereto have set their hands as of the day and year first written above.

EXHIBIT A SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS

Part I: Rental Schedule: Insert or attach hereto a schedule documenting all rental payments due during the initial Term and during any extensions to the Term. Specify the annual rent due per year, the resulting approximate cost per square foot, monthly rental payments due, and the total rental cost of the Term. Define and provide methodology for any variable escalation (such as Consumer Price Index escalation) clauses which may be applied towards the annual rent, setting forth the agreed maximum cost per annum and term.

RENTAL SCHEDULE

The Premises are comprised of approximately 17,076 square feet of space as set forth in Section 2 herein. This space is comprised of both courtroom and general office space. The rent due for the Premises during the tenyear term shall be as follows:

Year	Lease Dates	Approximate Square Foot Cost (17,076 sq. ft.)	Total Monthly Rent	Total Annual Rent	Annual Increase
1	1/1/21 - 12/31/21 \$ 14.77		\$ 21,022	\$ 252,264	2
2	1/1/22 - 12/31/22	\$ 15.07	\$ 21,442	\$ 257,304	2
3	1/1/23 - 12/31/23	\$ 15.37	\$ 21,871	\$ 262,452	2
4	1/1/24 - 12/31/24	\$ 15.68	\$ 22,308	\$ 267,696	2
	Total for I	\$1,039,716			

Part II: Additional Costs: Disclose and specify any additional Tenant costs or payments which are not part of the "rent" set forth in "Part I" above but due and payable under the terms of the Agreement herein. Disclosure to include the dates or time frames such payments are due, and if applicable a "schedule of payments" for any installments to be paid towards the total additional payment.

There are no additional costs.

EXHIBIT B

JANITORIAL SERVICES: specify which party shall be responsible for provision of janitorial services to the Premises (and/or portions of the Premises) during the Term. Specify what those services shall include, and how often they shall be provided. Provide any additional information required for clarification of duties and scheduling.

Janitorial services to be provided by Landlord as described in the "Statement of Work for Janitorial Services" and "Frequencies of Janitorial Services" descriptions provided within this Section. All janitorial services shall be provided by the Landlord as described at no additional cost to the Tenant. The cost shall be included in the "rent" set forth in "Exhibit A" herein.

STATEMENT OF WORK FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES

- 1-01. <u>SCOPE</u>: These specifications provide for accomplishing custodial services in a professional and workmanlike manner, in strict and complete compliance with these specifications and subject to the terms and conditions of this contract.
- 1-02. <u>DESCRIPTION OF WORK</u>: The work to be accomplished under this specification consists of performing all custodial services as hereinafter specified in the attachments hereto.
- 1-03. HOURS OF SERVICE: All janitorial work is to be performed outside of Tenant's regular business hours.

1-04. DEFINITIONS OF SERVICES:

- A. <u>Sweeping</u> Includes brush or mop sweeping compound if required, or mechanical brush-vacuum sweeping, without damage or disfigurement of furniture, doors or base trim.
- B. <u>Damp-Mopping</u> Cleaning of floor surfaces using cotton or sponge yarn mops, appropriate stain removal agents, heated water and detergent, if required, using as small amount of water as possible.
- C. <u>Buffing</u> Includes buffing with tampico brush and periodic buffing with cylindrical floor machine using fine steel wool cylinder to remove traffic marks, heavy soil, etc.
- D. <u>Floor Scrubbing</u> Cleaning of floors by use of deck brush, cylindrical or disc type machine, or automatic machine scrubber and detergent solution using as small amount of water as possible, followed by plain water rinse and pickup. This scrubbing will be followed by the application of one coat of wax or finish and buffing.
- E. <u>Floor-Dry-Cleaning</u> Cleaning to remove marks, imbedded dirt and debris by buffing with steel wool disc or drum on machine having vacuum soil pick-up.
- F. <u>Floor Stripping</u> Removal or stripping of all wax or floor finish down to the flooring material, using compound especially prepared for this purpose, with brush or steel wool agitation as required, followed by rinsing with plain water to remove all wax or finish, solution, dirt and film.
- G. <u>Primary Floor Finishing</u> Application of two coats of water-emulsion wax or floor finish with clean applicator over entire floor after stripping as above, with thorough buffing after each coat. Wax and floor finish may not be used one after the other unless floor stripping (see para F. above) is first accomplished.
- H. <u>Touch-Up of Floor Surfaces</u> Application of wax or finish in heavy traffic areas between primary floor finishing. This includes thorough damp-mop cleaning of entire area prior to application of wax or floor finish, and buffing entire area after application of wax or finish.
- High Dusting Removal of dust from walls, ceilings, and other structural components; equipment and fixtures above six-foot reach from floor, with hand dusters or vacuum cleaner.
- J. Resilient Floor Coverings Includes linoleum plastic asphalt, rubber and cork.

- K. Vacuum Carpets (spot clean) Vacuum all carpeted common areas, heavy traffic areas and entranceways.
- L. <u>Vacuum Carpets</u> Vacuum all carpeted surfaces, inclusive of all offices and workstations.
- M. Carpet Shampooing and Cleaning Three acceptable methods:
 - a. Hot Water Extraction: A truck-mounted hot water, approximately 180° at the wand, (or steam) extraction system to be used. Prior to carpet shampooing, general vacuuming will be provided to remove all particulates. In heavily soiled areas, a pre-treatment of an aggressive alkaline-based solution will be used to assist to break the bond between ground-in particulate and contaminants from the carpet fiber. In extremely soiled areas, a pile lifter will also be required. Rinsing/extracting will be accomplished with a very mild acidic solution or Ph neutral water rinse cleaner, to remove soil and the detergent residue from past cleanings. A high production unit, consisting of a cleaning wand with a motorized power brush, will be used.
 - The process utilized to be according to recommendations by the carpet manufacturer and the Institute of Inspection Cleaning Restoration Certification (IICRC), a trade organization.
 - b. Bonnet Cleaning: Thoroughly vacuum all carpeted areas to remove all surface particles prior to performance of cleaning. Mist/spray cleaning product onto carpet, utilize bonnet (rotary buffer with absorbent pads) carpet cleaner machine to remove soil particles and change cleaning pads once they become dirty.
 - c. Throughly vacuum to remove surface particles, pretreat with suitable stain remover as needed. Shampoo with "Rug Doctor" or equivalent rotary broom and solution type machine.
- 1-05. <u>SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT</u>: The LANDLORD will furnish all supplies and equipment for accomplishment of all work. LANDLORD's equipment shall be of the size and type suitable for accomplishing the various phases of work described herein, shall operate from existing sources of electrical power and shall have low noise level of operations. Equipment considered to be improper or inadequate for the purpose shall be removed from the job and replaced with satisfactory equipment. All equipment shall be stored on site.
 - A. Major Items of Supplies:

Detergent, General Purpose

Soap, toilet (Floating White)

Soap, toilet, powder - Plain and with Borax

Sweeping Compound

Polish - Metal

Wax, Floor, Water Emulsion - or TENANT approved substitute

Liquid floor finish - an acrylic resin floor finish acceptable as an alternate to water.

Waste Container Liners (plastic)

Remover, Water Emulsion Type Floor Wax

- B. <u>Material and Supplies</u> The LANDLORD shall furnish all materials and supplies required.
- C. <u>Supplies Used</u> Unless otherwise specified, supplies shall be of the highest quality and most suitable type or grade for the respective work under contract. Any item with potentially flammable or otherwise harmful qualities shall not be used.
- D. <u>Personal Protection Equipment (PPE)</u> LANDLORD shall be responsible to provide, instruct and replace/upgrade as necessary, any and all PPE, as required or recommended by OSHA 1910.132 or other such regulation, for all of their employees.
- 1-06. <u>STORAGE</u> The Tenant will not be responsible in any way for damage to the LANDLORD's stored supplies, materials or equipment kept throughout the buildings in janitor's closets; or the LANDLORD's employees' personal belongings brought into the building; occasioned by fire, theft, accident or otherwise.
- 1-07. LANDLORD QUALIFICATIONS:

- A. <u>Employees</u>: The LANDLORD shall employ only personnel skilled in janitorial work. Because of possible contact with classified equipment or papers, no person shall be employed whose loyalty to the United States is questionable. The LANDLORD assumes total responsibility of their employees, subcontractors, agents and invitees.
- 1-08. SUPERINTENDENCE BY LANDLORD: The LANDLORD shall at all times during hours specified for service, provide an on-site working janitorial supervisor who can efficiently and effectively communicate, in written and verbal forms, with both the Tenant and to their subordinate janitorial staff. Supervisor to provide adequate supervision of his employees to ensure complete and satisfactory performance of all work in accordance with information as to how and where he/she or his/her representative can be contacted during the regular business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.). Once a month the LANDLORD's agent will contact the Department's Manager of Administration to go over any problems and/or suggestions.

1-09. INSPECTION:

- Daily inspection of all the LANDLORD's work will be made by the Department's Manager of Administration or his/her representative. The representative has authority to point out to the LANDLORD, incomplete or defective work and necessary corrective measures, but does not have authority to alter the terms or conditions of the contract. In addition, the on-site facility contact shall maintain a "Jani Log" to note any deficiencies and/or special needs. LANDLORD is responsible to check this log daily, attend to requests and initial when complete.
- 1-10. STANDARDS: The following standards shall be used in evaluation of custodial services:
 - A. Dusting A properly dusted surface is free of all dirt and dust, dust streaks, lint and cobwebs.
 - B. <u>Plumbing Fixtures and Dispenser Cleaning</u> Plumbing fixtures and dispensers are clean when free of all deposits and stains so that item is left without streaks, dust, film, odor or stains.
 - C. Sweeping A properly swept floor is free of all dirt, dust, grit, lint and debris except imbedded dirt and grit.
 - D. Spot Cleaning A surface adequately spot cleaned is free of all stains, deposits and is substantially free of cleaning marks.
 - E. <u>Damp Mopping</u> A satisfactorily damp-mopped floor is without dirt, dust, marks, film, streaks, debris or standing water.
 - F. <u>Metal Cleaning</u> All cleaned metal surfaces are without deposits or tarnish and with a uniformly bright appearance. Cleaner is removed from adjacent surfaces.
 - G. Glass Cleaning Glass is clean when all accessible glass surfaces are without streaks, film, deposits, and stains, and has a uniformly bright appearance and adjacent surfaces have been wiped clean.
 - H. <u>Scrubbing</u> Scrubbing is satisfactorily performed when all surfaces are without imbedded dirt, cleaning solution, film, debris, stains and marks and standing water in all areas and floor has a uniformly clean appearance. A plain water rinse must follow the scrubbing process immediately.
 - I. <u>Light-Fixture Cleaning</u> Light fixtures are clean when all components, including bulbs, tubes, lenses and diffusers are without insects, dirt, lint, film and streaks. All articles removed must be replaced immediately.
 - J. Wall Cleaning After cleaning, the surfaces of all walls, ceilings, exposed pipes and equipment will have a uniformly clean appearance, free from dirt, stains, streaks, lint and cleaning marks, painted surfaces must not be unduly damaged. Hard finish wainscot or glazed ceramic tile surfaces must be bright, free of film, streaks and deposits.
 - K. <u>Buffing of Floor Surfaces</u> All waxed and/or acrylic finished areas will be buffed sufficiently for maximum gloss, as to provide the removal of surface dirt and yield a uniform appearance.
- 1-11. SERVICES: The following services shall be performed to comply with the aforementioned specified standards:

- A. <u>Cleaning Rest Rooms</u> This work includes cleaning all plumbing fixtures; lavatories, toilet bowls, group wash fountains, dispensers, baby changing stations; spot cleaning wainscot, doors, stall partitions and all laminate counters as required; and filling all paper, soap and feminine napkin dispensers as needed. Scouring powder may be used on plumbing fixtures or ceramic tile to remove stubborn stains or deposits. A toilet bowl cleaner may be used for water closets and urinals if required. All stains or spots shall be removed from ceramic tile, wainscot and staff partitions using a damp cloth, with detergent and chlorine bleach. Floors shall be dry swept and damp mopped. Shower walls shall be wiped dry and the floor cleaned.
- B. <u>Cleaning Sinks and Drinking Fountains</u> All items will be cleaned using detergent or scouring powder if required. Cabinets of water chillers shall be wiped clean with a damp cloth. Any spillage on floors or walls adjacent to fixture shall be wiped clean with a damp cloth.
- C. <u>Sweeping</u> All tile, wood or concrete floors, stairways, landings and stoops shall be swept, using an approved sweeping compound and dust and debris removed to receptacles provided for this purpose outside the building.
- D. <u>Damp Mopping Floors</u> Damp mop all resilient floors, quarry tile and concrete floors. All resilient floors shall be buffed. Note: Resilient floors may be dry cleaned provided satisfactory results are demonstrated by the LANDLORD. Damp mopped resilient floors shall be buffed with appropriate brushes.
- E. <u>Scrubbing</u> Scrub all resilient floors, ceramic tile and smooth concrete floors. Resilient floors that have been scrubbed shall be waxed and buffed as specified.
- F. <u>Prime Waxing</u> Primary wax resilient flooring wax shall be applied as recommended by the manufacturer of the product furnished. Primary waxing shall follow immediately the operation of wax removal or stripping and scrubbing.
- G. <u>Stripping and Wax Removal</u> Wax removal shall be accomplished on all resilient floors. All dirt, stain, old wax and debris shall be completely removed down to the original flooring material. When floors are completely clean and dry, apply two coats of wax and buff each coat.
- H. <u>Buffing</u> Touch up wax and/or finish and buff after damp mopping all resilient flooring in entrances, lobbies and corridors.
- I. <u>Glass Cleaning</u> Clean all mirrors, glass cases, windows and glass at building entrances, using plain water or cleaning solution prepared for this purpose. Adjacent rim shall be wiped clean with a damp cloth. Scouring powder or ammonia shall not be used. Doors and windows shall be washed on both sides.
- J. <u>Cleaning Interior Walls and Ceilings</u> When not otherwise washed, clean all interior painted walls, partitions and ceiling surfaces and window trim, except acoustical material. Beginning at the highest point, dust shall be first removed from all surfaces, exposed overhead pipes and equipment with untreated dusters or by vacuuming. Cobwebs shall be removed with an upward stroke to avoid streaking.
- K. <u>Cleaning Wainscot and Laminate Counter Tops</u> Clean all tile or impervious finish wainscot, laminate counter tops, toilet stall partitions and doors. Cleaning shall be accomplished with detergent solution and sponge followed by plain water rinse and drying with a clean cloth. Abrasive cleaners will not be used on painted or resilient surfaces. All spillage or marking of adjacent surfaces shall be wiped clean with a damp cloth.
- L. Cleaning Doors and Trim: Clean doors and adjacent trim not otherwise cleaned.
- M. <u>Dusting Horizontal Surfaces Other Than Furniture</u>, <u>Fixtures and Equipment</u> Dust with treated dust cloth or vacuum all horizontal surfaces of windows, radiators, baseboards and other horizontal surfaces in reach from the floor.
- N. <u>Empty Waste Receptacles</u> Empty all waste receptacles, inclusive of all exterior cigarette receptacles, and remove trash and paper from building and deposit in collection facilities provided for this purpose by Landlord.
- O. <u>Washing Waste Receptacles</u> Wash specified waste receptacles to keep in sanitary condition. Washing shall be accomplished with brush and detergent solution. Use of steam or cleaning agents harmful to paint or receptacle material will not be permitted. Receptacles will be left free of deposits, stains, dirt streaks and odor.

- P. <u>Clean Light Fixtures</u> Dust all accessible components of incandescent and fluorescent light fixtures including bulbs, tubes, lenses and diffusers with a cloth or yarn duster. Clean fixtures with a damp cloth at frequencies indicated.
- Q. Mat Cleaning Clean all dirt, removing mats at entrance and remove all dirt and dust deposits underneath.
- R. Metal Cleaning and Polishing All door and rest room hardware shall be polished using approved polishing compound.
- S. <u>Dust and Wash Vertical/Horizontal</u> Vertical/Horizontal blinds shall be dusted with soft cloths, dusters, brushes manufactured for this purpose, or vacuumed. Blinds to be washed shall be removed from the windows and thoroughly washed, rinsed and dried before reinstalling at proper windows.
- T. <u>Turning off Lights</u> Janitorial staff shall be responsible to turn off interior lights after the conclusion of their nightly operations.
- 1-12. CLEAN UP: All supplies, equipment and machines shall be kept free of traffic lanes or other areas where they might be hazardous and shall be secured at the end of each work period in areas provided for this purpose. Cloths, mops, or brushes, containing residue of wax or other combustible material subject to spontaneous ignition, shall not be disposed of or stored within the building or dumped in the on site disposal facility. LANDLORD shall be responsible to legally dispose of any and all hazardous or flammable materials as required by law. All dirt and debris resulting from work under this contract shall be disposed of each day at the completion of work. Only biodegradable cleaning solutions shall be disposed of in plumbing fixtures provided for this purpose.
- 1-13. <u>LOST, FOUND OR MISSING ARTICLES</u>: All unclaimed articles found in or about the work areas by the LANDLORD will be turned in immediately to the Tenant's District Office Manager of Operations located at this facility.
- 1-14. SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL: To be provided in conformance with Section 8.5 of the Agreement herein.
- 1-15. <u>SUPPLIES</u>: The LANDLORD will furnish supplies to fill all dispensers in the rest rooms and lounge. This is to include toilet paper, paper towels, sanitary toilet seat covers, baby changing station bed liners, anti-bacterial soap and sanitary napkins.
- 1-16. <u>RECYCLING:</u> The Landlord shall provide recycling collection, documentation, and repository services in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit C Part IV "Recycling" of the Agreement herein.

Exhibit B Continued: FREQUENCIES OF JANITORIAL SERVICES

	DAILY	WEEKLY	MONTHLY	QUARTERLY	SEMIANNUALLY	ANNUALLY
SERVICE						
Floors (Resilient)		-				
Sweep/Dust Mop	X					
	X		-			
Damp Mop	X					
Damp Mop Entrances	λ	-	- v			
Buff			X			
Strip and rewax main corridors and				V		
public areas				Х		
Scrub and apply one coat of wax			Х			
Walls						
Clean						Х
Spot clean (as required)						
Dust (include piping ducts, etc.)				Х		
Woodwork and Doors						
Clean						Х
Spot clean walls, doors, trim, folding						
doors, etc. as required				10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1		
Dust		Х			ALTO DESCRIPTION OF THE SERVICE SERVIC	
Light Fixtures						
Dust		1	Х			
Damp Wipe		1	1	Х		
Diffusers: Damp Clean		 		1	Х	
Drinking Fountains		 	-			-
Clean	Х		-	 		-
Dust horizontal surfaces of all		 				
fixtures, ledges, woodwork, doors,			х			
etc.		 				
Waste Receptacles		 		-		
Empty waste Receptacles	Х	-	 			
Wash waste Receptacles			Х			
Mat Cleaning	Х	_				
Exterior Doors						
Class Cleaning, Other		Х				
Metal Cleaning and Polishing (as						
required)						
High Dusting				Х		
Toilets						
Clean Water Closets	Х					
Clean Urinals	Х	1				
Clean Wash Basins	Х					
Dispensers, fill and clean	Х		 			
Mirrors	X		-		†	
Mop floors with disinfectant	X					
Vacuum Carpets (spot clean)	X	 	 			
		Х	-			
Vacuum Carpets	 				 	
Window Cleaning – Interior and Exterior						Х
Removal and replacement of window screens as necessary						
Skylight clean (if applicable)	 	 		Х		
	+		-	, A	 	
Window covering	-	-			Х	
Clean and re-hang	-	 		V		
Carpet Cleaning			-	Х		
*Hot Water Extraction Method				ļ		Х
Bonnet Cleaning Method				Х		
Recycling		X				

^{*} Hot Water Extraction at 12 months replaces quarterly Bonnet Cleaning

EXHIBIT C

Provisions for Architecturally Barrier – Free Accessibility, "Clean Air" compliance, Improvements, Recycling, and Energy Conservation follow:

Part I Architecturally Barrier-Free access to the Premises conforming with all applicable codes and regulations which are in effect as of the date of inception of the Term shall be provided unless otherwise agreed by the parties hereto and agreed by the "Architectural Barrier-Free Design Committee". If Barrier-Free access is deficient it shall be provided after the inception of the Term herein by making certain renovations and/or alterations to the Premises which shall include all recommendations set forth by the State of New Hampshire's "Architectural Barrier-Free Design Committee" (AB Committee) in their "Letter of Recommendation" which has been attached hereto and made part of the Agreement herein by reference. Specify in text and/or illustrate the manner in which all renovations recommended by the AB Committee will be provided at the Premises. Define which party, the Landlord or Tenant, shall be responsible for providing and funding said renovations and the time frame allowed for completion.

In accordance with the Letter of Recommendation from the Architectural Barrier-Free Design Committee, the following provisions are required to provide barrier-free accessibility.

- 1. The lessee shall require the Lessor to restore provision of the "accessible parking" layout originally approved by the ABFDC in 2007. Restoration shall include re-painting of ground marking and the PERMANENT installation of conforming parking space designation signs ("NO PARKING" and "VAN ACCESSIBLE) at the head of each accessible parking space and access aisle.
- 2. The Lessee will modify the recently installed handrail to be code conforming, and comply with sections 405 and 505 of the 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design. Lessee will submit proof of completion with photographs and measurements by July 1, 2021 to the Governor's Commission on Disability.
- Part II Air Testing Requirements No later than thirty (30) days after the commencement of the Term herein the air quality of the Premises shall be tested in accordance with the requirements of the Agreement herein.

1. Definitions:

- a) "Initial lease" means the lease of space within a building, executed on behalf of a state agency when no prior lease for the rental of that particular space by the agency exists.
- b) "Office space" means an area within a building occupied for four (4) or more hours each workday by one or more state employees whose primary functions include supervision, administration, clerical support, retail sales, or instruction. "Office space" does not include laboratories, vehicle repair facilities, machine shops, or medical treatment areas, and does not include any other areas where the department determines that the air quality contaminants created by the activity in the area are appropriately regulated by other state or federal authorities.
- c) "Owner or operator" means the builder, seller, lessor, donor, or the donor's executor of a building, or portion of a building, which is leased, rented, sold or bequeathed to, or which will be or has been built for, the state for use as office space.
- d) "Previously certified space" means an office space that was demonstrated to have passed the air quality tests subsequently described in this section when it was leased by the state for the first time.
- e) "Renewal lease" means the agency's previous lease has expired and a new lease agreement for the same space has been agreed upon.
- f) "Short-term lease" means a lease for any building area less than or equal to one year in duration.
- g) "Small space" means any leased building area whose total net usable square footage is equal to or less than 1,000 square feet.

- 2. An owner or operator who is leasing office space to the state shall demonstrate compliance with the following clean air industry standards if the space is:
 - a) A space not previously occupied by the State requiring complete testing as specified; or
 - b) A previously certified space subject to a renewal lease requiring modified testing; or
 - c) A small space or area within a building whose total net usable square footage is equal to or less than 1,000 square feet, occupied for less than four (4) hours each workday by one or more state employees, shall be exempt from clean air testing standards.
- 3. Required tests and indoor air standards:
 - a) Sampling and Analysis General:
 - i. Samples shall be collected by or under the direction of a certified industrial hygienist or an individual who is accredited by the American Board of Industrial Hygiene.
 - ii. Samples to be tested for asbestos and formaldehyde shall be analyzed by laboratories accredited by the American Industrial Hygiene Association.
 - b) Ventilation:
 - i. **Standard:** The ventilation requirement shall be a minimum of 20 cubic feet per minute (cfm) of fresh air per person occupying the space.
 - c) Noise Testing:
 - i. All state tenant noise sources turned off; such as printers and copiers; and
 - ii. Air handling systems in operation.
 - iii. Standard: Noise levels shall not exceed:

Frequency (Hz)	Noise Level (dBA)	
63	67	
125	60	d) Radon
250	54	Testing:
500	49	i. Standard:
1000	46	
2000	44	The maximum
4000	43	allowable
8000	42	concentration
		of radon shall

be 4.0 picocuries of radon per liter of air.

- ii. Radon testing shall be done on the lowest level that will be occupied as office space.
- iii. If a passive radon monitoring device is used, duplicate samples shall be collected for every 2,000 square feet of office space.
- iv. Radon testing devices shall be approved by the National Radon Safety Board (NRSB) or the national Environmental Health Association (NEHA) and analyzed by a laboratory accredited by the NRSB or certified by the NEHA.
- v. Radon shall be measured in accordance with the NRSB or NEHA radon measurement protocol.
- e) Formaldehyde Testing:
 - i. **Standard**: The maximum allowable concentration of formaldehyde shall be 0.1 parts of formaldehyde per million parts of air.
- f) Asbestos Testing:
 - i. Standard: The maximum allowable concentration of asbestos shall be 0.1 fibers per cubic centimeter of air as determined by phase contrast optical microscopy, performed as described in "Asbestos and Other Fibers by PCM: Method 7400, Issue2" NIOSH Manual of Analytical Methods (NMAM) Fourth Edition, 8/15/94.
 - ii. Office space that will be subject to a renewal lease shall be retested for asbestos except when the owner or operator can document that either:
 - The building or space has been previously certified as asbestos-free by the building contractor; or

- The building or space has been inspected by an accredited asbestos inspector and determined to be asbestos-free.
- g) Carbon Dioxide Testing:
 - i. Standard: The maximum allowable concentration of carbon dioxide shall be:
 - 800 parts of carbon dioxide per million parts of air in unoccupied office spaces; or
 - 1,000 parts of carbon dioxide per million parts of air in occupied office spaces.
- h) Carbon Monoxide Testing:
 - Standard: The maximum allowable concentration of carbon monoxide shall be five (5) parts of carbon monoxide per million parts of air.
 - ii. Carbon monoxide testing shall be conducted with the heating, ventilating, and air conditioning system on.
- Modified tests and indoor air standards:
 - A previously certified space shall demonstrate compliance with clean air standards for 3f Asbestos,
 3g Carbon Dioxide, and 3h Carbon Monoxide testing only.
- 5. Certification of Clean Air Standards
 - a) The owner or operator shall certify the quality of the indoor air present in a building, or portion(s) of a building to be used as office space.
 - b) Certification by the owner or operator shall be deemed complete upon written receipt by the department of one of the following two statements:
 - i. "I hereby affirm that sampling and analyses conducted were performed in accordance with the best professional practice and that all tests were within normal limits"; or
 - ii. "I hereby affirm that sampling and analysis conducted were performed in accordance with best professional practice and that all tests were not within normal limits."
 - c) The owner or operator shall attach a copy of all test results as described above to the written statement completed in 8.8.3.2 above.
- 6. Waiver Procedure:
 - a) An owner or operator has an option to request a waiver by providing an explanation of why they cannot meet the air testing standards as described in Part II, 3 above.
 - b) The State of New Hampshire reserves the right to grant/not grant an exemption.

The Landlord (Tenant) shall schedule and pay for the required testing. In the event of testing results demonstrating the Premises do not conform with all or part of the above mentioned requirements, Landlord will be responsible for providing and paying for the alterations and repairs necessary to remedy the non-conformity, the time frame to be allowed for providing remedy, and Landlord shall bear the cost of re-testing and repair required.

- Part III Improvements, Renovations or New Construction ("work"): In the event that the Agreement herein includes provisions for such "work" to be provided, the Tenant's finalized version of Design-Build floor plans, specifications and any supplemental defining documents depicting all "work" shall be reviewed, accepted, agreed-to and signed by both parties and shall be deemed as part of the lease document. The Tenant and the Landlord shall both retain copies of these documents. Tenant shall provide complete copies to the State of New Hampshire, Department of Administrative Services, Bureau of Planning and Management.
 - 1. No renovations anticipated for this agreement.
- **Part IV** Recycling: The manner in which recycling at the Premises will be implemented and sustained is either documented below or as specified in the attachment hereto titled "Recycling" which shall be made part of the Agreement by reference.
 - 1. The Landlord, or the Landlord's janitorial provider (Provider), shall recycle all waste products for which markets are available. The following products may be included: mixed paper, including boxboard, corrugated cardboard, shredded paper and containers (plastic, tin, cans, bottles and glass). Items to be recycled shall be

determined by what is accepted as recyclable materials at the Town of Conway Transfer station.

- 2. The Tenant shall place all items intended for recycling in collection bins, which shall be provided and properly labeled by Tenant. The Landlord, or Provider, shall remove the items intended for recycling from the Tenant's collection bins and bags and deposit at the Town of Conway Transfer station. Tenant shall ensure all recyclable liquid containers shall be empty and rinsed before placing in the bins.
- Part V Energy Conservation: The extent to which a landlord can share information on the facility's energy consumption shall be documented below. When possible, the landlord shall share information such as energy audit results, energy scores, and monthly energy invoices.

N/A

EXHIBIT D SPECIAL PROVISIONS

The parties' agreements concerning modifications or additions to the foregoing standard provisions of this lease shall be as set forth below or attached hereto and incorporated by reference:

ADDITIONS TO THE STANDARD PROVISIONS OF THE LEASE:

Parking. Provide a minimum of 75 to 80 parking spaces paved and striped for the Tenant's staff, security personnel and visitors. Provision of parking shall be without additional charge, included in the annual rent. The total number of paved parking spaces shall also meet or exceed the required numbers as required by the local building code. Parking will comply with original approved layout and design as per the lease agreement in 2007. See attached approved parking layout. Landlord shall provide access aisles and compliant signage at each accessible parking space.

Modification of Standard Provisions

Note - text which differs from the original provision is in italics

A. The standard provisions of Section 8.2, <u>Maintenance and Repair of Broken Glass</u>, are modified by inserting the following:

<u>Section 8.2 Maintenance and Repair of Broken Glass</u>. The glass partitions that the Tenant installed at the Superior Court Clerk's Counter are exempt from Section 8.2 and therefore excluded from the Landlord's responsibility.

B. The standard provisions of Section 20.5, Asbestos, Part A, are deleted and replaced by the following:

Section 20.5, <u>Asbestos, A.</u> If the Landlord conducts either an Asbestos Inspection Survey or a Phase One Site Assessment during the term of this agreement, the Landlord agrees to provide a copy of the report to the Tenant.

Landlord Initials: Date: 1/21/21

Page 30 of 30